

## COUNCIL MEETING WEDNESDAY 30th MAY 2018

## **Table of Adoptions**

No	Item	Summary of Adoption
3	TO CONSIDER NOTICE OF MOTION PROPOSED BY COUNCILLOR MCCORKELL, SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR DUDDY	Support the Notice of Motion
	"That this Council bestows the Freedom of the Borough upon the Royal Air Force, in recognition of 100 years of service, and in acknowledgement of the vital air and ground defence roles which they continue to provide for the security of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland. Council also recognises through this motion the role the RAF plays across the world when called upon to provide air defence, through sacrifice and adversity'.	

## MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD IN CIVIC HEADQUARTERS, COLERAINE ON WEDNESDAY 30<sup>TH</sup> MAY 2018 at 7.04PM

In the Chair	:	The Mayor Councillor Baird
Members Present	:	Alderman Campbell, Finlay, King, S McKillop and Robinson
		Councillors Beattie, Blair, Chivers, Clarke, Deighan, Duddy, Fielding, Holmes, Hunter, Knight-McQuillan, Loftus, McCandless, McCorkell, McGlinchey, McKillop MA, McLaughlin, McLean, C McShane, P McShane, P, A Mulholland, K Mulholland, Quigley, Stevenson, Watton
Officers Present	:	D Jackson, Chief Executive M Quinn, Director of Corporate Services R Baker, Director of Leisure & Development A McPeake, Director of Environmental Services D Wright, Chief Finance Officer D Hunter, Council Solicitor S Duggan, Committee and Member Services Officer
In attendance		Press (1 no.) Public (1 no.)

#### 1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were recorded for Alderman Hillis, Councillors Callan, Hunter, McCaul and Wilson.

#### 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no Declarations of Interest.

#### 3. TO CONSIDER NOTICE OF MOTION PROPOSED BY COUNCILLOR MCCORKELL, SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR DUDDY

Report previously circulated.

Proposed by Councillor McCorkell Seconded by Councillor Duddy - That this Council bestows the Freedom of the Borough upon the Royal Air Force, in recognition of 100 years of service, and in acknowledgement of the vital air and ground defence roles which they continue to provide for the security of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland. Council also recognises through this motion the role the RAF plays across the world when called upon to provide air defence, through sacrifice and adversity.

Councillor McCorkell read a statement in support:

The first of April marked one hundred years since the creation of the Royal Air Force, the world's oldest independent air force, from the merger of the Royal Flying Corps and the Royal Naval Air Service.

The RAF has had an extraordinary record since then: in warfare and in peace-keeping, in supply and relief efforts and in search-and-rescue operations. From the early days of flight during the bloodshed of World War One, when the advance of the German infantry was driven back by RAF air power, basic as it was, to the Second World War and the amazing story of the first woman ever to be awarded the George Cross, Violette Szabo. She was dropped from RAF aircraft, behind enemy lines in France on two missions in 1944 as a special agent.

Modern day flight, both civilian and military owes its advances to the men and women of the RAF as they work to improve aviation technology and continue to be the world's leading airforce.

But it's not all about fast jets and dropping bombs. In 2018 the RAF and the RAF Regiment are to the fore in helping countries and peoples around the world.

On 16th May, an RAF Regiment from RAF Honington arrived in Kenya to deliver a specialist training package in counter-IEDs to the Kenyan army who will be deploying shortly to Somalia.

Meanwhile a team from RAF Lossiemouth in Scotland are in the process of preparing the Nigerian Airforce and Air Police in counter intelligence in their fight against Boko Harem in Nigeria. So all around the world today, the men of woman of the RAF are using their expert skills to help others.

It is closer to home though where I want to turn as I submit this notice of motion. When I was Deputy Mayor I met many people from all across this Borough who had a connection to the story of the RAF. Everywhere I went, someone would come forward when they heard that I was from Limavady and tell me that they once worked in Ballykelly or that they settled here after finding love when posted to the area.

RAF Ballykelly opened in June 1941 during the Second World War as an airfield for RAF Coastal Command. A year earlier, RAF Limavady, known locally as Aghanloo airfield had been opened. Both stations played a vital role as part of RAF Coastal Command in the fight against Nazi U-Boats

in the Atlantic Ocean. By the end of the war, squadrons stationed in Ballykelly had been responsible for sinking twelve U-boats and destroying many more. Londonderry and Lisahalley rightly gets the credit for the place where the U-Boats surrendered, but arguably it was the RAF flying out of Limavady and Ballykelly who brought them to submission.

RAF Ballykelly closed at the end of the Second World War, but reopened in 1947 as the home of the RAF Joint Anti-Submarine School, a training flight of Shackleton aircraft. The airfield would go on to become home to this famous aircraft, further strengthening the bond between the area, it's people and the RAF. The last of the Shackleton aircraft left RAF Ballykelly on 31 March 1971, when the site was handed over to the Army as Shackleton Barracks.

After the Second World War the Aghanloo airfield was further used by the Fleet Air Arm until 1958 when it was finally sold off. On that site today there remains remnants of the days when Wellington Bombers once took off and landed. Many of the old buildings which where once used to train and house airmen remain onsite. The most historic is the black dome, used to train anti-aircraft gunners, one of only two left standing. Indeed throughout Limavady there are buildings which bear the marks of the days when they were once used by the RAF in more difficult times.

Churchyards across the Borough are memory to and are the final resting place of those who lost their lives working in this place. Christ Church and Saint Mary's in Limavady town to name just two.

The RAF and the men and woman who served in the RAF and indeed their families are intertwined in the DNA of our community. Without even going into what the RAF does for our Airwaves airshow, the service they gave and the service the RAF currently gives makes them and the Regiment worthy recipients of the Freedom of our Borough in this their centenary year. For without them, our Borough and our freedom to live here would be much different from what we know today.

Councillor P McShane voiced his opposition against awarding the Honour on the RAF organisation.

Councillor Mulholland outlined Sinn Féin's opposition to awarding the Freedom of the Borough on any Branch of the British Armed Forces, whilst Sinn Féin respected the right of the Unionist Community to express that view.

Alderman McKillop concurred with Councillor McCorkell and spoke of the contribution of the RAF to the area, its recognition of which, she stated was overdue.

Councillor Beattie, on behalf of the SDLP Party advised they could not support the Notice of Motion, on the basis of unnecessary expenditure.

Councillor Stevenson and Councillor Holmes stated their respective support and welcomed the proposal.

# \* Councillor C McShane arrived at the meeting at 7.15pm during consideration of the Item.

The Mayor put the Motion to the Council to vote. 17 members voted For, 13 Members voted Against, 0 Members Abstained.

The Mayor declared the Motion carried.

There being no further business, the Mayor thanked everyone for their attendance and the meeting concluded at 7.20PM.

Mayor